
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
September 6, 2018 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Rich Holmer (arr. 6:54 p.m.) 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Acting Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Board Vice President Tim Lipinski 
at 6:31 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 
p.m.) 


(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The 
following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 2, 2018 Board Meeting and the August 20, 
2018 Special Board Meeting 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence (None.) 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:40 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 


 1







 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:33 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District emergency procedures.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Extensive Board discussion ensued.  No formal action was 
taken. 


 
 
V-B. (7:21 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re: Guernewood Park Project.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  No action was taken.  
 
V-C. (7:22 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Rescheduling October Board Meeting.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:34 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Russian River Flow 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project 
6. 2018 CIP 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Small Claims Court Action 
9. Vacation 
10. Gantt Chart 
11. Laurel Dell/River Meadows main replacement project 
 
Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue. 
 
 
** At 7:57 p.m. the Board took a brief recess.  The meeting reconvened at 8:02 p.m. 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:02 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:03 p.m.) 
 
At 8:03 p.m. Vice President Lipinski announced the item for discussion in Closed Session.  At 
8:04 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:42 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following action was announced: 
 


A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 - Public Employment: General 
Manager 


 Direction was given to Staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:43 p.m.) 
 


 2







 3


1. Guerneville Park Resort 


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:40 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:34 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:02 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:03 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






 1


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES 
 
 


Board of Directors SPECIAL Meeting  
September 12, 2018 
5:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski  
 Gaylord Schaap  
 Sukey Robb-Wilder  
 Rich Holmer 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
  
   
Board Members Absent:  
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
  
Others in Attendance:     Valerie and Norm Roberts (arr. 6 p.m., by phone) 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Pip Marquez de la Plata at 5:40 p.m.   
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (5:41 p.m.)(None.) 
 


III. CLOSED SESSION (5:43 p.m.) 
 
At 5:43.m. President de la Plata announced the item for discussion in Closed Session.  At 5:43 p.m. the 
Board went into Closed Session.  At 7:17 p.m.. the meeting reconvened and the following action was 
announced: 
 
 A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 - Public Employment: General Manager 
  Direction was given to staff.  
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:17 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Stephen Mack 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  







 2


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (5:41 p.m.)(None.)

		III. CLOSED SESSION (5:43 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


October 4, 2018, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 6, 2018 Board Meeting and the 


September 12, 2018 Special Board Meeting 
 







B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
  (1) Letter dated September 13, 2018 from SDRMA re No Paid 


Property/Liability Claims in 2017-18 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re 2017 Water Audit  (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 18-14, Approving a Construction Contract with 


Piazza Construction for water main replacement on Laurel Dell Ave. in the Sum 
of $55,280.75, Authorizing the General Manager to Approve Change Orders up 
to $5,500 on said Project, and Providing for a waiver to District Policy 3700, 
Bidding and Purchasing  (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 


 A. 7 pm.  Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b) - Public Employment: General 
 Manager 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN











SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: October 4, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: 2017 WATER AUDIT 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the 2017 Water Audit and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In October 2015 the California State Legislature adopted Senate Bill 555 (SB 555) 
because it found the state’s urban retail water suppliers could improve water 
supplies by performing validated water loss audits on their water distribution 
systems. SB 555 added Section 10608.34 to the California Water Code, requiring the 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) to establish regulations for conducting and 
validating water loss audits, technical qualifications for persons performing water 
loss audit validation, and reporting requirements. for submitting validated water loss 
audits to DWR.  
 
Water loss audits evaluate real water losses (leaks) and apparent water losses (e.g. 
data errors, water theft) occurring in a potable water distribution system. Estimating 
the scale and cost of these losses allows utilities to identify opportunities for saving 
water and recovering revenue.  Staff had been doing these water audits for some 
time as part of our participation in the California Urban Water Conservation 
Coalition.   In 2016 for the first time in California, water loss audit submissions were 
reviewed by validators which were funded by the State and then submitted to the 
State. The reviews followed the validation methodology detailed in Water Research 
Foundation Project 4639: Level 1 Water Audit Validation. Level 1 water audit 
validation aims to: 
  


1. Identify and, where possible, correct inaccuracies in water audit data and 
application of methodology. 


2. Evaluate and communicate the uncertainty inherent in water audit data. 
 
This year the requirement continued but the validations were not funded by the State 
nor was there any assistance or direction in doing the validations provided by the State.  
Staff called around and were bailed out by the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) 
who has trained validators that were made available to us (for a fee).  The validation 
done by SCWA cost the District approximately $1400 which came out of the funding 
provided by the water conservation agreement that the District has with SCWA.   







2017 Water Audit 2  
October 4, 2018 


 
Staff completed the water audit in late August, did the validation in mid September and 
shortly thereafter submitted the District's validated water audit to the State.   
 
Attached are the completed 2017 Water Audit and System Attributes and Performance 
Indicators that were submitted to the State. 
 
We know we have water losses; we track it every month in our production versus sales 
spreadsheets.  System losses is one of the key factors in deciding which projects belong 
in our CIP.  The water audit approach thinks we need to look at other aspects of this 
issue as well: 
 


 How accurate are out meters? - production meters may not accurately measure 
water that we produce; customer meters may not accurately measure the water 
that we sell.  Correctly the latter would provide additional revenue to the District 
as meters rarely read high.  The audit included a default value of 2% which is 
approximately 11 acre feet.  The second page of the audit values that at 
$46,000.   


 How much water is stolen from the District? Because we are a relatively hands-on 
district, it's difficult to believe much water is being stolen from the District; the 
audit has a default amount of 0.25 %. which is 1.8 acre feet. 


 Pressure reduction has worked in other areas to reduce losses but because of our 
topography that is not a practical approach for us.   


 
 







Water Audit Report for:
Reporting Year:


All volumes to be entered as: ACRE-FEET PER YEAR


Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments


WATER SUPPLIED Pcnt: Value:


Volume from own sources: 5 717.000 acre-ft/yr 3 acre-ft/yr
Water imported: n/a acre-ft/yr n/a acre-ft/yr
Water exported: n/a acre-ft/yr n/a acre-ft/yr


Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: 717.000 acre-ft/yr Enter positive % or value for over-registration


.


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION
Billed metered: 5 546 acre-ft/yr


Billed unmetered: n/a acre-ft/yr


Unbilled metered: n/a acre-ft/yr Pcnt: Value:


Unbilled unmetered: 5 1.793 acre-ft/yr 1.25% acre-ft/yr


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 548.057 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 168.943 acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:


Unauthorized consumption: 1.793 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Customer metering inaccuracies: 3 11.148 acre-ft/yr 2.00% acre-ft/yr
Systematic data handling errors: 5 1.366 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses: 14.306 acre-ft/yr


Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 154.636 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES: 168.943 acre-ft/yr


NON-REVENUE WATER
NON-REVENUE WATER: 170.735 acre-ft/yr


= Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered


SYSTEM DATA


Length of mains: 10 65.0 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 8 3,800


Service connection density: 58 conn./mile main


Yes
Average length of customer service line: ft


Average operating pressure: 7 75.0 psi


COST DATA


Total annual cost of operating water system: 10 $3,795,000 $/Year


Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 9 $2.73
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 5 $300.00 $/acre-ft


 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:


 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:


     1: Volume from own sources


     2: Customer metering inaccuracies


     3: Billed metered


1/2017 - 12/2017


                   Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed


Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied


Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? 


                Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed                


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 Reporting Worksheet


1.793


              <----------- Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J' ---------->


2017
Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)


 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:


$/100 cubic feet (ccf)


*** YOUR SCORE IS: 58 out of 100 ***


A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score


?


?


?


?


?


? Click to access definition


?


?


?


?


?


?


Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the input 
data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades


?


?


?


?


?


?


(length of service line, beyond the property boundary, 
that is the responsibility of the utility)


Use buttons to select
percentage of water supplied


OR
value


?Click here: 
for help using option 
buttons below


?


?


?


?


+


+ Click to add a comment


 WAS v5.0


+


+


+


+


+


+


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


?


?


?


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+ Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses


?


To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where 
the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it.


Reporting Worksheet      1AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0







Water Audit Report for: Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)
Reporting Year:


System Attributes:
Apparent Losses: 14.306                               acre-ft/yr


+              Real Losses: 154.636                             acre-ft/yr


=            Water Losses: 168.943                             acre-ft/yr


Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): 77.43 acre-ft/yr


Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $17,010


Annual cost of Real Losses: $46,391 Valued at Variable Production Cost


Performance Indicators:


Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 23.8%


Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 1.7%  Real Losses valued at Variable Production Cost


Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 3.36 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per service connection per day: 36.33 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per length of main per day*: N/A


Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: 0.48 gallons/connection/day/psi


From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 154.64 acre-feet/year


2.00


* This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 System Attributes and Performance Indicators


*** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 58 out of 100 ***


Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:


2017 1/2017 - 12/2017


Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton


?


?


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


 WAS v5.0


Financial:


Operational Efficiency:


Performance Indicators      2AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0





		Item V-A - 2017 Water Audit

		Item V-A.1- 2017 Water Audit

		Reporting Worksheet

		Performance Indicators








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : October 4, 2018  
 
Subject:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 18-14 WAIVING DISTRICT 
BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT TO PIAZZA CONSTRUCTION FOR REPLACEMENT OF A WATER 
LINE ON LAUREL DELL AVE.  
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 18-14 which waives the District policy 
3700 which requires at least 3 bids for construction projects costing more that $25,000 
and awards the construction contract for replacement of a water main in River Meadows 
on Laurel Dell Avenue to Piazza Construction for a not to exceed amount of $55,280.75, 
and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for a total amount not to 
exceed $5,500.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $55,280.75 plus up to $5,500 in possible change orders for a total 
amount of $60,780.75. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
The project that is the subject of this report and District Policy waiver request fixes an 
issue that is an artifact of the District's water system development.  River Meadows 
historically was supplied by a well in the middle of a field as shown in Figure 1 and the 
area was supplied water from distribution lines coming from the well. In the mid 1990's 
the District abandoned the well and connected the River Meadows area to the Monte Rio 
system with a long distribution line attaching to the end of Sylvan Way.  The well was 
bypassed (and abandoned) and the existing distribution lines have been used ever 
since.  The water line (in red) through the field where the abandoned well exists has 
been an issue ever since and would be difficult to fix if and when it fails.  The water line 
travels through private property and when the property owners build something - a 
house, a fence, etc. - the water line can be in the way.  As time goes on and memories 
fade, and pipe degrades, this issue will only become worse.  An example of this was a 
couple months ago when a property owner building a fence struck the line causing a 
leak that needed immediate repair.  The valving near the well (which is poorly mapped) 
is also degrading over time and will cause problems some day.   
 
The leak this summer caused staff to investigate the location of this water line (this 
area is poorly mapped in our GIS).  They found the line going under Laurel Dell Ave. 
and under a group of poplars (another potential source of water line failure).   
 
All these issues - water line cross country, unneeded valving in the middle of a field, 
older pipe in the middle of a field, trees prone to toppling over the water line have led 







Laurel Dell Project and Waiver of District Bidding Policy   2   
October 4, 2018                                                                 


staff to the desire to remedy this situation as soon as possible.  As Figure 1 shows and 
relatively simple connection can be made from the corner of Conifer Dr. and Laurel Dell 
Ave. to Sylvan Way.  This can be directionally bored which would minimize the 
disturbance to the surface streets.  Piazza Construction is mobilized in the area doing 
our 2018 CIP.  Staff asked for a proposal to do this work and received the proposal 
which is attached to this report - the proposal price is $55,280.75.  We have compared 
this proposed price to current work being done and found that it is consistent with those 
costs.  
 
District Policy 3700.50 requires award of contract for purchase transactions that exceed 
$25,000 to be made by the District Board by resolution after a sealed competitive bid 
process.  Policy 3700.80.09 allows the Board to waive the competitive bid process and 
authorize staff to negotiate the purchase.  Staff is requesting that waiver for these 
reasons: 
 


 There is some urgency to this project - it's not an emergency but there are real 
issues with this water line and repairing this line in the winter would be difficult 
as the area can become very wet with winter rains.   


 A contractor who can do the work; in fact the only local contractor who can do 
directional boring, is mobilized in the area. 


 This project cannot be considered a change order for the current CIP; it's not 
really related.   


 Staff did inquire of other local contractors if they could do the work; they could 
not do directional boring - they would subcontract Piazza. 


 Trenching opens the project up to more contractors, but would require 
engineered plans adding cost to the project.  Trenching would also add costs 
because of the County paving requirements and permitting costs.   


 Putting the project out to bid would make the earliest completion next summer.   
 If the project was added on to a future CIP (getting the economy of scale needed 


to make engineering costs manageable) there would be no likely cost savings as 
this project is not near any other anticipated water line replacement projects.   


 The proposed cost of the project is above the $25,000 Policy amount but 
nowhere near the cost of approximately $1 million for the District's typical CIP 
construction contract for which competitive bidding has been done in the past by 
the District. 


 
The competitive bid process is required in the District policies for good reasons.  We feel 
there are good reasons for this policy to be waived for this project at this time, as 
stated above.   
 
Resolution 18-14 includes the findings that allow the Board to waive Policy 3700.50 and 
awards the construction contract for replacing the water line on Laurel Dell Ave. to 
Piazza Construction for the proposal price of $55,280.75.  It also includes change order 
authority of $5,500. 
 
The work authorized under this contract would be completed prior to the rainy season.   
The work involves repair, replacement and reconstruction of existing water main 
distribution lines.  The work is in the same general location as existing facilities and will 
result in no expansion of system capacity.  The work will provide important and 
necessary improvements to the District’s distribution system.  This project is not in the 


 







Laurel Dell Project and Waiver of District Bidding Policy   3   
October 4, 2018                                                                 


 


2018-2019 Budget; staff have looked at the District's fund situation and the District has 
funds available to do this project and comply with the District's Reserve Policy.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 18-14 which waives District Policy 3700.50 
and awards the construction contract for replacement of the Laurel Dell Ave. water line 
to Piazza Construction for a not to exceed amount of $55,280.75 and authorizes the 
General Manager to approve change orders for an amount not to exceed $5,500.     
 
 







Resolution No. 18-14 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT WAIVING DISTRICT POLICY 3700.50 REQUIRING 


COMPETITIVE BIDS FOR PROJECTS OVER $25,000 AND AWARDING THE  


CONTRACT FOR WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT ON LAUREL DELL AVE.,  TO  


PIAZZA CONSTRUCTION IN THE SUM OF $55,280.75, AND AUTHORIZING 


THE GENERAL MANAGER TOTAL CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL OF $5,500 
 


 WHEREAS, the water line in the River Meadows area has an urgent need for 
repair and replacement; and 
 


WHEREAS, a contractor who can do this specialized work requiring directional 
boring is mobilized in the area ; and 


 
WHEREAS, this contractor, Piazza Construction, has, at District request, 


submitted a proposal to do the work for a total cost of $55,280.75; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has  Policy 3700.50 which requires sealed, competitive 


bids for projects costing more than $25,000 and has Policy 3700.80.09 which allows 
exceptions to this policy, and 


 
WHEREAS, staff believe Policy 3700.50 should be waived in this situation 


because of the urgency of the project, the availability of a contractor who can do the 
work and has a history of competitive bids, and the added cost and time required to do a 
competitive bid process, and 


 
WHEREAS, the District has funds available to do this project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project involves the replacement or reconstruction of existing 


facilities and will result in negligible or no expansion of capacity, thus the Project is 
exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 
15301(b) and 15302(c); and  
 
 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the above-referenced bid amount, it is anticipated 
that the Project will have a certain amount of unanticipated construction issues during 
construction necessitating change orders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is of importance to the contractor and District alike that 
construction not be unduly delayed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager is familiar with the project and will be 
monitoring construction. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby: 
 


1. Waives District Policy 3700.50 as allowed by District Policy 3700.80.09; 
and 







Resolution 18-14.  Waiver of District Policy 3700.50 and Award of 
Construction Contract for Laurel Dell Ave.  2 
October 4, 2018 
 


2. Approves the Project construction contract in the amount of $55,280.75; 
and 


  
3. Awards the construction contract for water main replacement on Laurel 


Dell Ave. to Piazza Construction; and 
 


 4. Authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders on the Project 
without Board approval with total change order approval not to exceed $5,500. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on October 
4, 2018, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
 


           
      Pip Marquez de la Plata   


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 







 
 
Figure 1.  Map of Laurel Dell Project Area, River Meadows, Showing Location of Former Well (red circle), Water Line to Be 
Abandoned (Red) and Water Line Added (Blue). 


Former Well 









		Item V-B - Award of Laurel Dell Rd Contract

		Meeting Date : October 4, 2018 



		Item V-B.1 - Resolution 18-14 Award of Laurel Dell Contract

		Item V-B.2 - Map of Laurel Dell Rd Project

		Item V-B.3- Piazza Bid Laurel Dell Ave.






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 4, 2018   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in August were 25,805 units (59.2 AF, (Monte 
Rio cycle) and production was 76.4 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
were higher this month  (55.2 AF and 75.6 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
decreased a bit, staying in the dropping trend.   Figure 1 shows sales, production and % 
difference for the separate Guerneville and Monte Rio systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In August we had 18 total leaks and spent 100 man-hours on them.   That's more 


leaks and fewer man-hours compared to the prior month and more of both compared to 
August one year ago (8 and 23).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a 
total leaks line as well.     


   
3. Russian River Flow:  Flow continues a little higher than the typical normal to dry year 


summer flow levels at shown in Figure 3.   Flow was recorded in the 140 cfs range for a 
couple days making me wonder about gage accuracy for those days.  These are provisional 
data and may be revised with further inspection.           


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Funding for the Open Space easement has been approved.   I 


need to get together with our RRR&PD contact, Paige MacDonnel to work out the purchase 
details.   


 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  No new news on this but I remain optimistic.  There's a chance 


funding for this can be tied to the Monte Rio Bridge replacement.   
  
6. 2018 CIP:  The project is making good progress; Piazza is working on Orchard Rd at the 


time of this writing; the Old River Road and Foothill Blvd sections are done. 
 
7. In-House Construction Projects: Four in-house construction projects were reported for 


September: Service line replaced on Tyrone Rd. (27 man-hours), Replaced and relocated 
service on Redwood Dr.  (35 man-hours)  New service on Redwood Dr. (35 man-hours), One 
inch meter upgrade on Northern Ave. (3.5) man-hours.    


 
8. District Wildfire Preparations:   An email was sent to Supervisor Hopkins expressing the 


District's concern about being included in County preparations and exercises.  District staff 
will attend an October 12 wildfire preparation webinar sponsored by the State Division of 
Drinking Water.   







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
October 4, 2018 
 


  
9.   Gantt Chart: For September the Gantt Chart shows Emergency Plan review by staff and 


shows that the CIP is underway - it's nearing completion as, as mentioned above.         
 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


Mar-
18


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
October 4, 2018 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


Mar-
18


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2018 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-16 Average, Updated September 25, 2018


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


c
fs


)


2013


2015


09-16 Avg


2017


2018


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 FY20+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2018 CIP Phase Award of Contract


        2018 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


        2019 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: October 4, 2018  



